
The meeting location is accessible to persons with disabilities.  A request for an interpreter for the hearing impaired, or for other accommodations for 
persons with disabilities, should be made at least 48 hours in advance of the meeting by contacting the Port of Cascade Locks office at 541-374-8619. 

PUBLIC MEETING: Port Commission Action Meeting    

DATE: Tuesday March 19, 2023, 6 PM 

LOCATION: Cascade Locks City Hall 140 Wa Na Pa St, Cascade Locks, OR 97014 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85806615790  

 

AGENDA 

1) Commission meeting called to order  
a. Pledge of Allegiance  
b. Roll Call 
c. Modifications, Additions and Changes to the Agenda 

2) Consent Agenda (***Consent Agenda may be approved in its entirety in a single motion. Items 
are considered routine. Any Commissioner may take a motion to remove any items from the 
Consent Agenda for individual discussion). 
a. Approval of minutes for Commission Meeting from February 20, 2024, March 5, 2024 – Page 

2 
b. Ratification of bills in the amount of $365.101.91 – Page 8 
c. Approval of payroll for February 19, 2024 in the amount of $36,493.60 and for March 4, 2024 

in the amount of $35,278.38 
3) Presentation 

a. Annual Review of Audit for FY2020–2021 – David Bledsoe, Pauly Rogers; Matt Apken, 
Merina+Co – Page 10 

b. Increase Rates for Campground – Parker Nelson 
4) Business Action Plan 

a. Adopt Resolution 2024-1 – A Resolution Approving the Plan of Action From The Fiscal Year 
Ended June 30, 2021, Financial Statement Audit – Page 92 

5) Executive Director Report 
6) Commissioner Comments 
7) Adjournment 

 
IMPORTANT DATES 

 
Thursday, March 21, 2024 
Local Budget Law Training 
Tuesday, March 26, 2024 
Port Budget Orientation 
Thursday, March 28, 2024 
Finance Commission Subcommittee Meeting 
Tuesday, April 2, 2024 
Port Commission Meeting 
Tuesday, April 16, 2024 
Port Commission Meeting 
Tuesday, April 23, 2024 
Port Budget Meeting 
Tuesday, April 30, 2024 
Port Budget Meeting 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85806615790


PUBLIC MEETING: Port Commission Meeting    

DATE: Tuesday February 20, 2024, 6 PM 

LOCATION: Cascade Locks City Hall 140 Wa Na Pa St, Cascade Locks, OR 97014 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85806615790  

 

MINUTES 

1) Commission meeting called to order 6:00 PM 
a. Pledge of Allegiance  
b. Roll Call 

i. President Lorang 
ii. Vice-President Klute 

iii. Commissioner Nance (excused) 
iv. Commissioner Peterson 
v. Commissioner Thweatt 

vi. Members of the Staff and Other Support – ED Jeremiah Blue; DED Genevieve 
Scholl; Secretary Keriane Stocker; Operations Manager Parker Nelson; 
Accounting Specialist Melissa Warren 

vii. Members of the Public – Chris Matlock 
c. Modifications, Additions and Changes to the Agenda 

i. GM Blue requested to shift Item 4c) Approve Fire Department Rescue Equipment, 
not to exceed $3,500 to before Item 3) Consent Agenda 

2) Executive Session under ORS 192.660 (2)(f) To consider information or records that are exempt by 
law from public inspection and (2)(h) To consult with counsel concerning the legal rights and duties 
of a public body with regard to current litigation or litigation likely to be filed 

a. Recess from Regular Session, into Executive Session at 6:03 pm 
b. Recess out of Executive Session, into Regular Session at 6:40 pm 

VP KLUTE MADE A MOTION TO DELEGATE THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO CONTINUE WORK WITH 
ATTORNEYS TO PROCEED WITH THE PENDING STATE LITIGATION; C THWEATT SECONDED; Passed 
Unanimously 

4) Business Action Items 
c. Approve Fire Department Rescue Equipment, not to exceed $3,500 

i. Funds have been allotted to support the fire department. Fire Chief Logan is 
requesting the Port assist in purchasing rescue equipment for the fire 
department that can be used in river rescues. The Port is also working with the 
Hood River County Sheriff Office on acquiring a jet ski for this season, and 
potentially a boat for next season. The Port has left a boat slip open in the 
marina for it. Chief Logan explains that the purchase he is requesting is to 
replace life jackets that are approaching their end-of-use date, as well as the 
accessories that are required to go along with them. 

VP KLUTE MADE A MOTION TO APPROVE FIRE DEPARTMENT RESCUE EQUIPMENT, NOT TO EXCEED 
$3,500; C PETERSON SECONDED; Passed Unanimously 

2

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85806615790


3) Consent Agenda (***Consent Agenda may be approved in its entirety in a single motion. Items are 
considered routine. Any Commissioner may take a motion to remove any items from the Consent 
Agenda for individual discussion). 

a. Approval of minutes for Commission Meeting from January 16, 2024 
b. Ratification of bills in the amount of $196,824.72 
c. Approval of payroll for both 1-19-24 and 2-2-24 in the amount of $75,368.74 
d. Approval of 2024-2025 Budget Schedule and appoint Matt Apken as Budget Officer 

4) Business Action Items 
a. Approve LGGP Grant Agreement for BOG Trailhead Restrooms Project, in the amount of 

$152,228.08 
i. DED Scholl made a correction to the action needed to be taken and the amount 

stated on the agenda. She explained that there are actually two (2) items being 
presented to the Commission. One, to “Approve Grant Agreement with Oregon 
Parks and Recreation Department Local Government Grant Program in the 
Amount of $158,228.” And two, to “Authorize purchase of Rainier Model 
Prefabricated Restroom and Shower unit from CXTinc upon receipt of Notice to 
Proceed from Oregon Parks and Recreation Department in the Amount of 
$149,108.08.” 
 
The Port was awarded the Oregon Parks and Recreation Department (“OPRD”)’s 
Local Government Grant which will be used to fund the Bridge of the Gods 
Trailhead Restroom Project. The Commission’s approval is needed as well as the 
authorization to purchase the prefabricated restrooms. There is a buffer in the 
budget for potential cost increases. The grant requires a $40,000 match, which 
will be reimbursed at 80% upon expense submission. An additional grant 
application was submitted to a regional organization for $19,000 to potentially 
cover half of the match requirement. 

C THWEATT MADE A MOTION TO APPROVE THE LGGP GRANT AGREEMENT FOR THE BRIDGE OF THE 
GODS TRAILHEAD RESTROOMS PROJECT, IN THE AMOUNT OF $158,228; VP KLUTE SECONDED; Passed 
Unanimously 

VP KLUTE MADE A MOTION TO AUTHORIZE THE PURCHASE OF A RAINIER MODEL PREFABRICATED 
RESTROOM AND SHOWER UNIT FROM CXTINC UPON RECEIPT OF NOTICE TO PROCEED FROM OREGON 
PARKS AND RECREATION DEPARTMENT IN THE AMOUNT OF $149,108.08; C THWEATT SECONDED; 
Passed Unanimously 

b. Approve Landlord Consent and Waiver Form for Landmass Wines 
i. Landmass, one of our tenants, is applying for a small business loan from Silicon 

Valley Bank (“SVB”). As a part of their application requirements, SVB has requested 
a “Landlord Lien Waiver and Consent to Removal of Personal Property” form from 
the Port. While this puts the Port in a second position for claiming the equipment 
if Landmass defaults, it has been long-standing language within our leases but 
nothing the Port has ever executed on. Landmass has a proven track record of on-
time payments and good communication. He commented that they have been 
fantastic tenants for the Port and would want to see them grow. 

VP KLUTE MADE A MOTION TO APPROVE THE LANDLORD LIEN WAIVER AND CONSENT TO REMOVAL 
OF PERSONAL PROPERTY” FOR LANDMASS WINES; C THWEATT SECONDED; Passed Unanimously 

5) Executive Director Report 
a. A report was distributed at the meeting

3



 

 
ED Blue commented that C Peterson had brought to his attention that the SeaTow 
Foundation. C Peterson stated that Sea Tow Foundation will be opening their grant 
window in November 2024. The foundation provides life jacket loaner stations and is the 
provider of the life vest station at the Port of Hood River. He added that Sea Tow is holding 
a remote conference. The fee to attend is $30. The Commission made a general agreement 
electing C Peterson to attend the conference. 
 
ED Blue also mentioned that Pacific Northwest Waterways Association (“PNWA”)’s Mission 
to Washington is coming up. Originally, the Port was not planning to attend this year, 
however, it could be a good opportunity for Mahr to continue building relations with the 
legislators. He received a consensus to send Mahr to Washington, DC for the convention.  

6) Commissioner Comments 
a.  VP Klute announced that the museum will be reopening on March 1st 
b. C Thweatt commented that, even though she knew that it would be a slow process, she is 

happy that she is beginning to see changes from the Commissioner requests being 
fulfilled.  

c. C Peterson expressed his thanks to ED Blue, DED Scholl, OM Nelson and Accounting 
Specialist Warren for all their help. He mentioned that Gorges Beer Co will be reopening 
after the water damage incident, on March 1st, as well. 

d. P Lorang reminded that the MorganCPS training on city planning is on March 16th. 
7) Adjournment 7:24 pm 

C PETERSON MADE A MOTION TO ADJOURN; VP KLUTE SECONDED; Passed Unanimously 

 

 

 

Port of Cascade Locks: 

 

 

_______________________________________________   ___________________________________________ 

Port Commission President     Port Commission Secretary 
Brad Lorang       Albert Nance 
 
 

_______________________________________________    

Date Approved 

 

___________________________________________ 

Prepared by: Keriane Stocker  

4



PUBLIC MEETING: Port Commission Meeting    

DATE: Tuesday March 5, 2024, 6 PM 

LOCATION: Cascade Locks City Hall 140 Wa Na Pa St, Cascade Locks, OR 97014 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85806615790  

 

MINUTES 

1) Commission meeting called to order 6:00 PM 
a. Pledge of Allegiance  
b. Roll Call 

i. President Lorang 
ii. Vice-President Klute 

iii. Commissioner Nance 
iv. Commissioner Peterson 
v. Commissioner Thweatt 

vi. Members of the Staff and Other Support – Executive Director Jeremiah Blue, Deputy 
Executive Director Genevieve Scholl, Secretary Keriane Stocker, Operations Manager 
Parker Nelson 

vii. Members of the Public – Flora Gibson (Columbia Gorge News), Chris Matlock, Caden 
Pond 

c. Modifications, Additions and Changes to the Agenda 
i. ED Blue noted that the Budget Schedule that was approved in the last meeting was 

revised, and the updated copy is included to Consent Agenda. 
2) Consent Agenda (***Consent Agenda may be approved in its entirety in a single motion. Items 

are considered routine. Any Commissioner may take a motion to remove any items from the 
Consent Agenda for individual discussion). 
a. Approval of minutes from Annual Planning Session on January 27, 2024 and Commission 

Meeting on February 6, 2024 
b. Approval of revised 2024-2025 Budget Schedule 

VP KLUTE MADE A MOTION TO APPROVE THE CONSENT AGENDA IN ITS ENTIRETY AS STATED; C 
PETERSON SECONDED; Passed Unanimously 

3) Presentations 
a. Root Cause Analysis Team Report: January 13, 2024 Sternwheeler Unmooring 

i. DED Scholl gave an overview of the report that the Root Cause Analysis (“RCA”) Team 
developed after their evaluation. It identified possible causes and recommended a 
number of improvements. The recommendations include establishing a program to 
manage the lifecycles of mooring lines, installing remote cameras and weather 
stations, installing umooring alarms, and updating the Emergency Action Plan 
(“EAP”) to include marine incidents. As well as, installing life rings on the Thunder 
Island footbridge crossing, installing a net under the footbridge, and considering 
alternate mooring arrangements suggested by previous Sternwheeler Captain Randy 
Holmstrom. ED Blue also added the possibility of the boat operating in Vancouver 
during the winter. 
 

5

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85806615790


C Nance encouraged that the recommendation list be sent to a contact at the United 
States Coast Guard (“USCG”) for reviewal and feedback. 

b. Increase Rates for Campground 
i. OM Nelson proposed an increase in the campground rates. Based on local 

campgrounds, the Marine Park Campground has been undervalued for a while. VP 
Klute stated that she believes there is a difference between campgrounds run by 
government entities and those run by private entities and would rather see a 
comparison based on other ports that have campgrounds. She also expressed 
concerns about affordability for locals and PCT hikers and that although the Port is 
in the business of driving economic development, she does not want to do it on the 
backs of recreation and the things that they, themselves, enjoy. DED Scholl pointed 
out that the decision also needs to include the consideration of ways to supplement 
bridge tolls if the Commission wants the Port to stop being supported by tolls. She 
also informed that many campgrounds are state run and are funded through other 
sources. C Nance requested cost analyses of the current budget, and a report on how 
much the Port could charge before they start to lose campers. 

4) Business Action Items 
a. Appoint Budget committee members 

i. ED Blue pointed out that the Budget Committee has three (3) vacant positions to fill 
for citizen members. With the Commission’s recommendation, he has been reaching 
out to several community members. The Port received three (3) letters of interest. 

VP KLUTE MOVED TO APPOINT GEORGE TORRES, SHELLEY OLVERA AND BRYAN KEILTY TO THE BUDGET 
COMMITTEE; C THWEATT SECONDED; Passed Unanimously 

5) Executive Director Report 
a. A report was provided in the packet. 

 
C Nance inquired about the $19,000 grant application to Experience Mt. Hood and the 
Gorge Strategic Investment Fund (“SIF”). DED Scholl answered that they had not received an 
answer back yet, however she explained that the Experience Gorge Mt. Hood is a regional 
destination marketing organization that receives a portion of the 1% of the transient room 
tax that goes to the state. The state then distributes it to the Regional Destination 
Management Organization (“RDMO”). Experience Mt. Hood and the Gorge has $73,000 to 
give away this year. The Port is asking for a large portion of it but it is to offset and help pay 
for the cash match that the we are responsible for, for the restroom project. 

6) Commissioner Comments 
a. C Thweatt had nothing to report. She commended DED Scholl on facilitating the RCA and OM 

Nelson on bringing the Commission’s attention to the campground. 
b. C Peterson commented that he will have a busy month with the upcoming local budget 

trainings, the annual strategic business plan, and the city planning training. He gave an update 
on the three-day Sea Tow Foundation conference he has been attending. C Peterson informed 
that the Port is in first place to win the prize of a life jacket station building kit. 

c. C Nance also expressed his appreciation to DED Scholl for her work on the RCA. He also 
mentioned that the museum reopened on March 1st. C Nance inquired about the 
Sternwheeler. ED Blue informed that the schedule for the repower has been delayed and they 
are planning to be operational in early to mid-April. He also brought up planning for the 
Christmas lights event as well as inquired about the next steps for Flex 6. 

d. VP Klute mentioned that the Hood River bridge is no longer allowing heavy trucks to use the 
bridge, which will have an impact the Bridge of the Gods. She requested that the “Important 

6



e. Dates” section on the agenda be included regularly as she finds it helpful. VP Klute concluded 
with thoughts on the bridge’s 100th anniversary. 

f. P Lorang commented that Dan Mahr (Government Affairs Consultant) texted him an update 
while he was in Washington DC. He also noted that Jasper Smith (Native Cider) was featured 
in the Gorge Magazine. 

7) Adjournment 7:43 pm 
 

 

 

 

 

Port of Cascade Locks: 

 

 

_______________________________________________   ___________________________________________ 

Port Commission President     Port Commission Secretary 
Brad Lorang       Albert Nance 
 
 

_______________________________________________    

Date Approved 

 

___________________________________________ 

Prepared by: Keriane Stocker  

 

7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



Oregon Secretary of State -Audits Division 

Summary of Revenues and Expenditures 
Please refer to instructions on next page. 

A. Municipal corporation information

Municipality name: Port of Cascade Locks 
Address line 1: PO Box 307 Reporting period: From 07/01/2020 

--------------------

Address line 2: To 6/30/2021 
City, state, ZIP: Cascade Locks OR 97014 Report type: Audit 
Check if new address: D Opinion issued: Unmodified 
If this is the final report, please enter the last date of operations: Basis of accounting: GAAP 

B. Financial statement audit - Reported deficiencies

1. Regarding internal controls over financial reporting, 3. How were deficiencies communicated? Check all that apply.
how many significant deficiencies and material D Report issued in accordance with Government Auditing Standards
weaknesses were reported? 18] Communication in accordance with Statements on Auditing

4 Standards AU-C 265 "Communicating Internal Control Related
2. Of those control deficiencies reported, how many Matters Identified in an Audit"

resulted in the following: D Other (specify communication): 
Accounting errors/Misstatements: 4 D No deficiencies 

Noncompliance: 0 Per OAR 162-010-0230, a copy must be filed with Secretary of State. 

! C. Summary of revenues and expenditures

Revenues and/or receipts
a. Revenues from government-wide

$3,930,952 statement of activities:

b. Fiduciary fund additions:

c. Gross revenues subtotal (a+ b): $3,930,952 

d. Revenues of component units:

e. Taxes, assessments and other
collections to be distributed to
other governments:

f. Exempt revenue subtotal (d + e): $0 

g. N�t.revenues (c � f):
.•·

•••. •· .;· <:' : , $.:3 93()<9.52•' .. : .. •.• . ";, '»>---'',..',' ,:<_,·, ,,,,' ,i'' 

! D. Filing fee:

E. Submitted by

Auditor name: Roy R. Rogers 
Firm name: Pauly, Rogers & Co. P.C. 

Expenditures and/or disbursements 
a. Expenditures from government-wide

statement of activities:

b. Fiduciary fund deductions:

c. Gross expenditures subtotal (a + b):

d. Component unit expenditures reported
with primary government:

e. Turnovers to other
municipal corporations:

f. Exempt expenditures subtotal (d + e):

Municipal license number: 0658 

$3,517,230 

$3,517,230 

$0 

--------

Date: ------
Municipal contact name, title: Jeremiah Blue, General Manager Muni c i pa I phone: (541) 37 4-2403 

Submit: Click the "Submit" button on the right to submit 

this form via email. Save a copy for your records. 

Within 30 days of delivering the audit report to the municipal corporation, one copy of this summary must be 
filed with the Secretary of State, Audits Division, and one copy must be delivered to the municipal corporation. 

If deficiencies are communicated in a separate letter or in a report issued in accordance with Government 

Auditing Standards, a copy of that communication must also be filed. (OAR 162-010-0230) SRE(9/2017) 

03/13/2024

77



78



PORT OF CASCADE LOCKS 
HOOD RIVER COUNTY, OREGON 

COMMUNICATION WITH THE GOVERNING BODY 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

12700 SW 72nd Ave. 
Tigard, OR 97223 

79



PAULY, ROGERS AND Co., P.C. 
12700 SW 72nd Ave. ♦ Tigard, OR 97223 
(503) 620-2632 ♦ (503) 684-7523 FAX 
www.paulyrogersandcocpas.com 

January 23, 2023 
To the Board of Directors 
Port of Cascade Locks 
Hood River County, Oregon 

We have audited the basic financial statements of the business activities of the Port of Cascade Locks (the Port) 
for the year ended June 30, 2021. Professional standards require that we provide you with information about our 
responsibilities under generally accepted auditing standards, as well as certain information related to the planned 
scope and timing of our audit. Professional standards also require that we communicate to you the following 
information related to our audit. 

Purpose of the Audit 

Our audit was conducted using sampling, inquiries and analytical work to opine on the fair presentation of the 
basic financial statements and compliance with: 

• generally accepted accounting principles and auditing standards 
• the Oregon Municipal Audit Law and the related administrative rules 

Our Responsibility under U.S. Generally Accepted Auditing Standards and the Uniform Guidance 

As stated in our engagement letter, our responsibility, as described by professional standards, is to express 
opinions about whether the basic financial statements prepared by management with your oversight are fairly 
presented, in all material respects, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Our audit of 
the basic financial statements does not relieve you or management of your responsibilities. Our engagement letter 
details our nonaudit services we provide; these services do not constitute an audit under Government Auditing 
Standards. 

In planning and performing our audit, we considered internal control over financial reporting in order to 
determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the basic financial statements 
and not to provide assurance on the internal control over financial reporting. 

Planned Scope and Timing of the Audit 

An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the basic 
financial statements; therefore, our audit involved judgment about the number of transactions examined and the 
areas to be tested. 

Our audit included obtaining an understanding of the Port and its environment, including internal control, 
sufficient to assess the risks of material misstatement of the basic financial statements and to design the nature, 
timing, and extent of fmther audit procedures. Material misstatements may result from (1) errors, (2) fraudulent 
financial reporting, (3) misappropriation of assets, or ( 4) violations of laws or governmental regulations that are 
attributable to the Port or to acts by management or employees acting on behalf of the Po1t, We also 
communicated any internal control related matters that are required to be communicated under professional 
standards. 

Page I of 4 

80



Pauly, Rogers and Co., P.C. 

Results of Audit 

1. Audit opinion letter - an unmodified opinion on the basic financial statements has been issued. This means 
we have given a "clean" opinion with no reservations. 

2. State minimum standards - We found no exceptions or issues requiring comment. 

3. Management letter - We issued a separate management letter dated January 23, 2023 detailing one material 
weakness and three significant deficiencies in internal controls. 

Significant Audit Findings 

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices 

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant 
accounting policies used are described in Note 1 to the basic financial statements. No new accounting policies 
were adopted and the application of existing policies was not changed during the year ended June 30, 2021. We 
noted no transactions entered into during the year for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. 
All significant transactions have been recognized in the basic financial statements in the proper period. 

Accounting estimates are an integral pait of the basic financial statements prepared by management and are based 
on management's knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about future events. 
Ce1tain accounting estimates are paiticularly sensitive because of their significance to the basic financial 
statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ significantly from those 
expected. The most sensitive estimates affecting the basic financial statements were Management's estimates of 
Receivables, Net Pension Liability and Deferrals for PERS, Total OPEB Liability and Deferrals for Healthcare, 
fair market value of investments and Capital Asset Depreciation, which are based on estimated collectability of 
receivables, actuarial assumptions and useful lives of assets. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used 
to develop these estimates in determining that they are reasonable in relation to the basic financial statements 
taken as a whole. 

Certain financial statement disclosures are paiticularly sens1t1ve because of their significance to financial 
statement users. The disclosures in the basic financial statements are neutral, consistent, and clear. 

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit 

We encountered significant delays in receiving requested and corrected records in performing and completing our 
audit. 

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements 

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the audit, 
other than those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management. 
Management has corrected all such misstatements or determined that their effects are immaterial. There were 
immaterial uncorrected misstatements noted during the audit which were discussed with management. 

Disagreements with Management 

For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, rep01ting, or auditing 
matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the basic financial statements or the 
auditors' report. We are pleased to rep01t that no such disagreements arose during the course of our audit. 

Page 2 of 4 

81



Pauly, Rogers and Co., P.C. 

Management Representations 

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management representation 
letter. 

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants 

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting matters, 
similar to obtaining a "second opinion" on ce1iain situations. If a consultation involves application of an 
accounting principle to the basic financial statements or a determination of the type of auditors' opinion that may 
be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the consulting accountant to check with us to 
determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with 
other accountants. 

Other Audit Findings or Issues 

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing 
standards with management each year prior to our retention as the auditors. However, these discussions occurred 
in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a condition to our retention. 

Required Supplementary Information 

We applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information that supplements the basic 
financial statements. Our procedures consisted of inquiries of management regarding the methods of preparing the 
information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the 
basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. 
We did not audit the required supplementary information and do not express an opinion or provide any assurance 
on it except for the budgetary comparison schedule presented as required supplementary information. 

Supplementary Information 

With respect to the supplementary information accompanying the basic financial statements, we made certain 
inquiries of management and evaluated the form, content, and methods of preparing the information to detennine 
that the information complies with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, the 
method of preparing it has not changed from the prior period, and the information is appropriate and complete in 
relation to our audit of the basic financial statements. We compared and reconciled the supplementary information 
to the underlying accounting records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial 
statements themselves. 

Other Information 

We were not engaged to report on the listing of Board members and terms, located before the table of contents, 
which accompanies the basic financial statements but is not required supplementary information. Such 
information has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial 
statements, and accordingly we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on it. 

Page 3 of4 

82



Pauly, Rogers and Co., P.C. 

Other Matters - Future Accounting and Auditing Issues 

In order to keep you aware of new auditing standards issued by the American Institute of Certified Public 
Accounts and accounting statements issued by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB), we have 
prepared the following summary of the more significant upcoming issues: 

GASB 87 - LEASES 

This Statement is effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2021, as extended by GASB 95. The 
primary objective of this Statement is to better meet the information needs of financial statement users by 
improving accounting and financial reporting for leases by governments. This Statement increases the 
usefulness of governments' financial statements by requiring recognition of certain lease assets and liabilities 
for leases that previously were classified as operating leases and recognized as inflows of resources or 
outflows of resources based on the payment provisions of the contract. It establishes a single model for lease 
accounting based on the foundational principle that leases are financings of the right to use an underlying 
asset. Under this Statement, a lessee is required to recognize a lease liability and an intangible right-to-use 
lease asset, and a lessor is required to recognize a lease receivable and a deferred inflow of resources, thereby 
enhancing the relevance and consistency of information about governments' leasing activities. 

GASB 89 - ACCOUNTING FOR INTEREST COST INCURRED BEFORE THE END OF A 
CONSTRUCTION PERIOD 

This Statement is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2020, as extended by GASB 95. The 
objectives of this Statement are to enhance the relevance and comparability of information about capital assets 
and the cost of borrowing for a reporting period and to simplify accounting for interest cost incurred before 
the end of a construction period. This Statement establishes accounting requirements for interest cost incurred 
before the end of a construction period. Such interest cost includes all interest that previously was accounted 
for in accordance with the requirements of paragraphs 5-22 of Statement No. 62, Codification of Accounting 
and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 2989 F ASB and AICPA Pronouncements, 
which are superseded by this Statement. This Statement requires that interest cost incurred before the end of a 
construction period be recognized as an expense in the period in which the cost is incurred for financial 
statements prepared using the economic resources measurement focus. As a result, interest cost incurred 
before the end of a construction period will not be included in the historical cost of a capital asset rep01ted in 
a business-type activity or enterprise fund. This Statement also reiterates that in financial statements prepared 
using the current financial resources measurement focus, interest cost incurred before the end of a 
construction period should be recognized as an expenditure on a basis consistent with governmental fund 
accounting principles. 

This information is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Directors and management and is 
not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

~7 '? ?2'fe..-, 

Rof R. ROGERS, CPA 
PAULY, ROGERS AND CO., P.C. 

Page 4 of 4 

83



PORT OF CASCADE LOCKS 
HOOD RIVER COUNTY, OREGON 

MANAGEMENT LETTER 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

12700 SW 72nd Ave. 
Tigard, OR 97223 

84



Port of Cascade Locks 
Hood River County, Oregon 

PAULY, ROGERS, AND Co., P.C. 

12700 SW 72nd Ave. Tigard, OR 97223 
(503) 620-2632 (503) 684-7523 FAX 
www.paulyrogersandcocpas.com 

January 23, 2023 

In planning and performing our audit of the basic financial statements of the Port of Cascade Locks (The Port) as of 
and for the year ended June 3 0, 2021 in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America, we considered the internal control over financial reporting (intemal control) as a basis for designing audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial 
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the internal control. Accordingly, 
we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the internal control. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding paragraph and was not 
designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies 
and therefore material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. In addition, because 
of inherent limitations in internal control, including the possibility of management override of controls, misstatements 
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected by such controls. However, as discussed below, we identified a 
deficiency in internal control that we consider to be a material weakness and other deficiencies that we consider to be 
significant deficiencies. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements 
on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies in internal control, such that 
there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the basic financial statements will not be prevented, or 
detected and corrected, on a timely basis. 

We consider the following deficiency in internal control to be a material weakness: 

l. Misstatement of Capital Assets 

Condition: During the course of the audit we found that the capital asset register maintained by management 
was not balanced or reconciled to the general ledger. 

Cause: The Port did not have controls in place that ensured significant accounts were reconciled and matched 
the general ledger. 

Criteria: Management is solely responsible for maintenance and reconciliation of a balanced capital asset 
register. 

Effect: Without proper maintenance and reconciliation there could have been a material misstatement to the 
Port's financial statements. In addition, this caused a significant delay in completing the financial audit in 
accordance with professional guidelines. 

Recommendation: We recommend the Port implement additional controls to ensure accurate coding, 
reconciliation, and presentation of capital assets and related depreciation. 

- 1 -

85



Pauly, Rogers and Co., P.C. 
January 23, 2023 

A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies in internal control that is 
material weakness, yet impo1tant enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 
following deficiencies in internal control to be significant deficiencies: 

1. Miscoding of Long Term Receivables 

severe than a 
We consider the 

Condition: During our testing of Long-Tenn Receivables, we noted the Port did not accurately record 
payments received against long-term agreements signed with private pa1ties. In some instances, payments 
were applied entirely to interest income while others were applied to the wrong vendor. 

Cause: The Po1t did not have controls in place that ensured significant accounts were reconciled and matched 
the general ledger. 

Criteria: Payments received for long-term agreements should be accurately and timely recorded consistent 
with Generally Accepted Accounting Procedures (GAAP). 

Effect: Without properly recording and reconciling long-term receivables outstanding receivables may not be 
collected and financial reprnting could be misstated. 

Recommendation: We recommend the Po1t implement additional controls to ensure accurate coding, 
reconciliation, and presentation of long-term receivables and payments. 

2. Accounting Records 

Condition: During the course of the audit we encountered significant delays m obtaining documentation 
required for completion of the audit in compliance with professional standards. 

Cause: The Port did not have adequate resources and/or qualified employees that could provide the required 
documentation for the audit within a reasonable time frame. 

Criteria: The audited financials were due to the State Audits Division by December 31, 2021. 

Effect: Without adequate resources and qualified staffing, material misstatements to the financial statements 
could be made and audits will be filed late. 

Recommendation: We recommend the Port adopt practices and invest resources to ensure audits can be 
completed in a timely manner in accordance with professional standards and state law. 

- 2 -

86



Pauly, Rogers and Co., P.C. 
January 23, 2023 

Significant Deficiencies (Continued) 

3. Accuracy and Recording of Financial Information 

Condition: During the course of the audit we received, or assisted in preparation of, 18 adjusting journal 
entries. 

Cause: The Pott did not have controls in place that ensured significant accounts were reconciled and matched 
the general ledger. 

Criteria: Management is solely responsible for producing accurate financial statement information for the 
audit. The business office should be able to produce accurate financial information without relying on the 
independent auditors' assistance. 

Effect: Without proper controls over the accuracy of the financial statement information and working trial 
balances, there exists the likelihood of material misstatements to the financial statements. 

Recommendation: We recommend the Port implement additional controls to ensure accurate coding, 
reconciliation and presentation of significant accounts. 

- 3 -

87



Pauly, Rogers and Co., P.C. 
January 23, 2023 

Best Practices - Not Significant Deficiencies 

1. Fidelity Insurance Coverage 

In reviewing fidelity (employee honesty) insurance coverage, we noticed that the Pmi often carries cash and 
investment balances in excess of the insurance coverage amount. We recommend that the Board examine this 
exposure risk and make a determination as to the amount of insurance coverage they feel is prudent in regard 
to their oversight 

2. QuickBooks Accounting Software 

QuickBooks accounting software is used. QuickBooks may allow users to delete transactions without any 
audit trail remaining. We recommend evaluating the risk of using this program and consider reviewing the 
audit tracker on a periodic basis for unusual transactions to ensure it has not been shut off. This review should 
be documented. 

3. Segregation of Duties 

Because of a limited number of available personnel, it is not always possible to adequately segregate certain 
incompatible duties. We noted that the General Manager and Accounting Specialist have full access to 
QuickBooks, where they can create vendors and input bills, access the check stock, print checks, and make 
changes. Although we noted some compensating controls are in place, we recommend that the Board 
continually monitor the financial activities and consider obtaining additional fidelity insurance (employee 
honesty) coverage to further mitigate this risk. 

4. Governing Body Monitoring 

An integral part of internal controls is the monitoring of financial act1v1t1es by those charged with the 
governance (the Board). This can be accomplished by asking specifically designed questions to senior staff, 
by reviewing basic financial statements and projections and by comparing financial results to pre-established 
benchmarks. 

We recommend that the Board of Directors articulate their monitoring practices and record in the minutes 
when those activities occur. 

This communication is intended solely for the information and use of management and the Board of Directors and is not 

intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

- 4 -

Ml t£ 72,~-> 
ROY R. ROGERS, CPA 
PAULY, ROGERS AND CO 

88



 

March 19, 2024 

 

Oregon Secretary of State,  
Audits Division 
255 Capitol St. NE, Suite #500 
Salem, OR 97310 
 

Plan of Action for Port of Cascade Locks 

Port of Cascade Locks respectfully submits the following corrective action plan in response 
to deficiencies reported in our audit of fiscal year ended June 30, 2021. The audit was 
completed by the independent auditing firm Pauly, Rogers and Co., P.C. and reported the 
deficiencies listed below.  

The deficiencies are listed below, including the adopted plan of action and timeframe for 
each. 

1. Material Weakness 
a. Deficiency: Misstatement of Capital Assets 

Condition: During the course of the audit we found that the capital asset 
register maintained by management was not balanced or reconciled to the 
general ledger. 
Cause: The Port did not have controls in place that ensured significant 
accounts were reconciled and matched the general ledger. 
Criteria: Management is solely responsible for maintenance and 
reconciliation of a balanced capital asset register. 
Effect: Without proper maintenance and reconciliation there could have been 
a material misstatement to the Port's financial statements. In addition, this 
caused a significant delay in completing the financial audit in accordance with 
professional guidelines. 
Recommendation: We recommend the Port implement additional controls 
to ensure accurate coding, reconciliation, and presentation of capital assets 
and related depreciation. 
Plan of action: The Port will perform either quarterly or annual reviews of 
capital assets register and reconcile it from the prior year’s financial 
statements to the current year accounting activity. This reconciliation will be 

89



completed before a final trial balance is provided to the auditor for their audit 
work. 
Implementation: This was implemented In March of 2023 by hiring a 
consultant to help prepare for the annual audits.  

2. Significant Deficiencies
a. Deficiency: Miscoding of Long-Term Receivables

Condition: During our testing of Long-Term Receivables, we noted the Port
did not accurately record payments received against long-term agreements
signed with private parties. In some instances, payments were applied entirely
to interest income while others were applied to the wrong vendor.
Cause: The P011 did not have controls in place that ensured significant
accounts were reconciled and matched the general ledger.
Criteria: Payments received for long-term agreements should be accurately
and timely recorded consistent with Generally Accepted Accounting
Procedures (GAAP).
Effect: Without properly recording and reconciling long-term receivables
outstanding receivables may not be collected and financial reporting could be
misstated.
Recommendation: We recommend the Port implement additional controls
to ensure accurate coding, reconciliation, and presentation of long-term
receivables and payments.
Plan of action: The Port will conduct regular reconciliations of long-term
receivables and payments to ensure accurate coding and presentation.
Implementation: This was implemented in March of 2023 by hiring a
consultant to help prepare for the annual audits.

b. Deficiency: Accounting Records
Condition: During the course of the audit we encountered significant delays
in obtaining documentation required for completion of the audit in
compliance with professional standards.
Cause: The Port did not have adequate resources and/or qualified employees
that could provide the required documentation for the audit within a
reasonable time frame.
Criteria: The audited financials were due to the State Audits Division by
December 31, 2021.

90



Effect: Without adequate resources and qualified staffing, material 
misstatements to the financial statements could be made and audits will be 
filed late. 
Recommendation: We recommend the Port adopt practices and invest 
resources to ensure audits can be completed in a timely manner in 
accordance with professional standards and state law. 
Plan of action: The Port will work to get audits back on schedule by the due 
date for the June 30, 2024, fiscal year end audit. This will be accomplished by 
creating a schedule with deadlines for preparing for the. 
Implementation: This is in process as the Port is currently working with the 
auditor on three (3) fiscal year audits at once. The 2024 audit is on schedule 
to be issued before December 31, 2024. 

c. Deficiency: Accuracy and Recording of Financial Information
Condition: During the course of the audit, we received, or assisted in
preparation of, 18 adjusting journal entries.
Cause: The Port did not have controls in place that ensured significant
accounts were reconciled and matched the general ledger.
Criteria: Management is solely responsible for producing accurate financial
statement information for the audit. The business office should be able to
produce accurate financial information without relying on the independent
auditors' assistance.
Effect: Without proper controls over the accuracy of the financial statement
information and working trial balances, there exists the likelihood of material
misstatements to the financial statements.
Recommendation: We recommend the Port implement additional controls
to ensure accurate coding, reconciliation, and presentation of significant
accounts.
Plan of action: The Port will conduct regular reconciliations of long-term
debt (bonds) and payments to ensure accurate coding and presentation.
Implementation: This was implemented in March of 2023 by hiring a
consultant to help prepare for the annual audits.

91



 

THE PORT OF CASCADE LOCKS 

 BOARD OF PORT COMMISSIONERS  

CASCADE LOCKS, OREGON   

RESOLUTION 2024-1 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE PLAN OF ACTION FROM THE FISCAL 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021, FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT 

WHEREAS the Secretary of State requires a municipality to submit a plan of action 
addressing and correcting the financial audit deficiencies noted by the auditor, 
and   

WHEREAS the auditor identified one material weakness and three significant 
deficiencies for the fiscal year audit ended June 30, 2021,  

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the Board of Commissioners of the Port of Cascade 
Locks, Oregon does hereby adopt the attached plan of action. 

 

Port of Cascade Locks:  

 

___________________________  ___________________________ 
Port Commission President   Port Commission Secretary 
Brad Lorang      Albert Nance 
 
 
___________________________ 
Date Approved 
 
___________________________ 

Prepared by: Keriane Stocker 

92


	2024.03.19 Commission Meeting Packet.pdf
	2024.03.19 Commission Meeting Agenda.pdf
	2024.03.05 Commission Meeting Minutes
	Audit Report.pdf
	Port of Cascade Locks - Financial Report - 2021.pdf
	Port of Cascade Locks - SRE - 2021.pdf
	Board Letter.pdf
	Management Letter.pdf
	Plan of Action.pdf
	Resolution for Plan of Action.pdf





